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POOLE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

GOVERNORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Governors present their annual report together with the accounts and auditor's report of the charitable company
for the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024. The annual repori serves the purposes of both a trustees' report,
a directors' report and a strategic report under company law.

The company was incorporated on 10 June 2011 and commenced operating as an academy school on 1 July 2011.

The Academy Trust operates an academy for pupifs aged 11 to 18, serving a catchment area favouring the historic
Poole borough and environs. It has a net pupil capacity of 1,375 and had a roll of 1,200 in the Autumn 2023 census.

Structure, governance and management

Constitution

The Academy Trust is an exempt charity and a company limited by guarantee. Its primary governing documents are
the memorandum and articles of association, which are contained in the funding agreement dated 1 July 2011.

The Academy Trust is known as Pocle Grammar School.

The Governors are the trustees of Poole Grammar School and are also the directors of the charitable company for
the purposes of company law. Details of the Governors who served during the year, and to the date these accounts
are approved, are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' liability

One member resigned in December 2023, details of the five remaining members are the Chair and Vice Chair of the
Governors, and key Governors from the Education (Chair) and Resources Committee (see Reference and
Administration Details on page 1-2). Each Member of the Academy Trust underiakes to contribute (not exceeding
£10) to the Academy Trust's assets if it should be wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he
or she ceases to be a Member, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a Member.

Governors' indemnities
The Academy Trust has purchased Governors’ liability insurance (£10M) and fidelity guarantee cover (£0.5M —
Governors and employees).

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Governors

Academy class of Governors were originally local authority appointed prior to academy conversion. The Governing
Body ratifies further four year appointments if Governors are willing to continue once their four year term has
expired. The Governing Body ratifies the co-opied class of Governor and these are usually from the Parent
Governor class.

Elections are held for the Parent and Staff (Teaching and Non-Teaching) class of Governors if there is competition
to fill any vacancies. Nofices are given in the school publications to advertise for any Governor vacancies in these
classes.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Governors

All new Governors participate in an induction programme and are issued with a copy of the Governors induction
pack. The Headteacher and the Governance Professional undertake induction training for new Governors.
Mentoring from existing Governors is also available for new Governors.

Governor training in the year was available through the National Governance Association and Governor Hub as well
as additional Cyber Security training. Governors are encouraged to attend relevant sessions.

The Governance Professional retains a record of training undertaken by Governors.




POOLE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Governing Body Composition

The Full Governing Body can comprise 22 Governors (8 Academy, up to 3 Co-opted Academy, the Principal, 7
Parent, and 3 Staff Governors) — see page 1 and 2. All Governors are subject to an enhanced DBS check.

Parent Governors are elected by the parents of current pupils of the Academy Trust. Staff Governors are elected by
the staff currently employed by the Academy Trust.

Full Governor /Member Composition

m Mzle e Femals

With regard to the appointment of Academy or Co-opted Academy Governors, the Full Governing Body gives
consideration to the skills mix of the Governors to ensure that the body has the necessary expertise and experience
to contribute to the academy’s development. The Governors undertook a skills matrix exercise to assess strengths
and areas for development in outlook and capability, this is due to be revisited in 2024/2025.

Of the 18 Governors/Members in position in 2023/2024, 12 are female (67%) and 6 male (33%).

Organisational structure
The Full Governing Body meets 4 times per academic year (October, December, March and July in 2023/2024).

The Annual General Meeting was held on 29th January 2024 and is scheduled to be held in December or January
in future years.

Resources sub-committees meet at least 3 times per year to review, evaluate and monitor the activities covered by
their terms of reference. In addition, the Staffing sub-commiittee, a subset of the resources committee usually meet
twice a year. The Disciplinary sub-committee meets as and when required for pupil or employee issues. Quorum is
3 or more Governors in any of the sub-committees.

The Resources Commitiee receives financial reports for each period of the year. In addition to meeting 3 times a
year to review all aspects of financial operations including Internal Scrutiny reports from SLL Accounting Ltd, a
separate budget preparation briefing meeting is held for Resources Governors. Financial performance and issues
are raised at every Full Governors meeting.

Page 18 confirms the 2023/2024 Governor meetings and the attendance of each Governor and Member.

The schedule of delegation is reviewed each year and sets out the financial delegations and responsibilities of the
Governors and the school's management teams. In addition, individual Governors have links to key school
functions. These links are reviewed on an annual basis.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Staffing Governors’ committee meets annually to review the performance management process for all staff and
will consider pay recommendations made by the Headteacher. The Governors follow national guidance on teacher
performance management and nationally agreed cost of living pay awards for all staff. Pay scales follow national
agreed sfructures.

The Headteacher’s performance management is reviewed annually by the Chair of Governors with support from the
Strategic Improvement Partner and selected Governors.
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Trade unjon facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during

the relevant period 4
Full-time equivalent employee number 3.90

Percentage of fime spent on facility fime

Percentage of fime Number of employees
0% =
1%-50% 4
51%-99% -
100% -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time 1,022
Total pay bill 6,598,895
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facilty time -

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of
total paid facility time hours 100%

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations
The Academy Trust is a beneficiary of the Poole Grammar School Trust fund (registered charity 306310). The

Academy Trust provides support and administration as required to the charity.
The School Trust fund is split inte several funds:
Amenities Fund — All donations are paid direct to the academy.

Old Grammarians Fund - Old Boys who wish to make a payment under the gift aid scheme do so directly to the
School Trust fund. These funds are primarily used to pay for the cost of the school magazine.

Parents Staff Assoclation - They raise funds for the school and make donations to the schoal for equipment and
projects as proposed by the school.

Murray Peters Fund (gift and legacy) - Taking note of the wishes of the donoar, the Trustees have kept this gift
separate from the Trust so that the income is used specifically to support and encourage educational travel andfor
of adventurous physical activity which have a clear educational benefit.

Harold Stickley Fund (legacy) - Taking note of the wishes of the donor, the Trustees have kept this legacy
separate from the other funds of the Trust so that it may be used specifically to support and encourage Oxbridge

pupils.
Capital Fund - This fund is used as a holding account for monies received prior to the Trustees resolving how these

funds are to be dealt with so as to accord with the wishes of the donor as far as possible within the terms of the
Trust Deed.

The Academy Trust Is an ordinary member of the South West Academic Trust (SWAT), which consists currently of
eleven selective schools in the South West of England, plus the University of Exeter. SWAT seeks to advance the
education of pupils of any member school through partnership and collaborafion. Academy Trust staff have been
involved in a wide range of meetings and training events during the period under review (see also note 27).

The school seconds some specialist staff into the Maths in Education and Industry organisation.




POOLE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Objectives and activities

Objects and gims
Objects - Academy Trust — Poole Grammar School

The Academy Trust's objects are contained in the articles of association in the funding agreement. The principal
objects are:

« to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the
generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing a school offering
a broad and balanced curriculum (“the Academy”);

* to promote for the benefit of the inhabifants of the historic Borough and county town of Poole and the
surrounding area the provision of facilities for recreation or cother leisure time occupation of individuals whao
have need of such facilities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or disablement, financial hardship or social
and economic circumstances or for the public at large in the interests of social welfare and with the object of
improving the condition of life of the said inhabitants.

Objects - Trading Subsidiary - Poole Grammar School Enterprises Limited

Following Full Governor approval on 10 July 2014, Poole Grammar School Enterprises Limited was set up ready to
trade on 1 September 2014. Its object is “to carry out any trade or business for the purposes of raising funds for the
Academy Trust”.

Its initial purpose is to support the external catering activities whereby Poole Grammar serves hot meals to local
schools and also for income from lettings of the new sports facility. The surplus generated is donated across to the
Academy Trust at the close of the financial year.

Governance of the Trading Subsidiary includes 2 Governors, the Headteacher, the Business Manager and the
Catering Manager. The 2023/2024 results from the Trading Subsidiary are consolidated in the Academy financial
statements.

Aims of Poole Grammar School

The aims of Poole Grammar School were reviewed in 2016 and condensed into the following single aim that is
applicable for the whole school community:

» to promote and pursue excellence in a stimulating and creative environment, where all are committed to
lifefong learning.

Objectives, stratedies and activities
The school models income and expenditure for the medium term. The aim is to ensure that expenditure matches

income in each of the forward years.
However, there are increasing expenditure pressures associated with:

= continuing significantly increased utility, food and fuel prices following the ongoing crisis in Ukraine as well as
the cost of living crisis;

= support staff national pay awards from April 2024;
* Increased pressure on funding following the 2023 and anticipated 2024 Teachers national pay awards;
= Increase in the pension contribution for teaching staff.

None of these are funded adequately enough by the Government.
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

To support strategic direction, the School Development Plan is prepared each year. It provides a framework of
activity for the academic year at school wide and department/function level. Staff objectives are linked to
devefopment plans. The final plan is taken to the first Full Governors meeting of the year after wide consultation and
refinement.

School Development Plan 20623/2024

This schoo! development plan builds on the 2022/2023 plan, now incorporating mental health and wellbeing as a
key area for development:

1. safeguarding

teaching, learning and curriculum development
leadership and staff development

pastoral matters including behaviour and attendance
assessment and reporting

. communication with stakeholders and partnerships
building and resources

admissions

O e HN (e e e Y

mental health and wellbeing

Public benefit
The Governors have given consideration to the Charity Commission’s general guidance on public benefit and in
particular to its supplementary public benefit guidance on advancing education.

The Academy Trust clearly states these public benefit credentials in its objects (see page 6). It provides education
fo children and young people that:

» is balanced and broadly based;

« promotes the spiritual, moral, cultural, mental and physical development of students at the school and of
society;

= prepares students at the schoo! for the opportunities, responsibilities and experiences of later life;

» promotes, sustains and increases individual and collective knowledge and understanding of specific areas of
study, skills and expertise.

The admissions policy of Poole Grammar School aims to reflect the underlying ethos of the school which is to
provide a selective education for boys from the historic Borough of Poole and its environs.
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report

Achievements and performance

The school has achieved and performed well in a wide range of areas inside and outside of the classroom. The
core business of achieving strong results at GCSE, A level and University entrance for those pupils leaving the
school has been complemented with pupil performances in diverse areas ranging across the specirum of the arts,
music and sport. The results have given us a solid foundation for further improvement in coming years.

Additionally the achievements and performance in developing students into fully committed members contributing to
society is somewhat more intangible but in many ways more important. This area is one that the whole school
community works together in addition to the first rate exam results.

Exam results and achievements are listed below. Year on year comparisons have been affected by national
curriculum reform and the use of both Teacher Assessed Grades (TAGs) and Centre Assessed Grades (CAGs) by
schools due to the COVID-19 pandemic in 2021 and 2020 respectively. The achievement highiights are indicative of
fhe tremendous range of activities and success that take place across the school and enrich the life of the school.

Exam Resulis

TAGS CAGS
A-level summary 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018,
Total number of entries 468 501 521 510 465 470 468
% pass rate 99.1 99.4 99 100 100 99.8 98.9
% A*-B 63 66.9 67.3 82.1 79.8 72.3 701
A-level only A*-B
%A* grades 12.2 14 13.2 31.5 25.8 13.8 15.1
Oxbridge success 4 4 3 8 5 4 4
% UCAS Success 100 96 97 92 96 93 93
ALPS T score {1 highest) 3 4 5 1 2 3 4
GCSE level summary
Total entries 1,741 1,769 1,813 1,775 1,808 1,780 1,844
% 9-7 58.8 58.6 61.3 73.4 70.2 62.5 56
% students 10+ 9-7 15.5 26.3 20.3 35.8 33 204 24
%9-5 strong pass 924 §9.3 95.3 98.2 99 03.38 922
%9-4 pass 97 95.2 08.7 99.9 100 97.5 97.2
% EBacc entered 69.1 75 62 67 67 78 68.7
% EBacc Standard Pass 55.2
%EBacc sfrong pass: 44.8
Att 8 713 69.9 72.1 75.5 74.9 727 69.5
Progress 8 0.64 0.45 0.25in/a 0.35 0.57 0.45
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Achievement highlights include:

Progress rates for students at GCSE (GCSE +0.89 progress 8 score) and A-level (ALPS T-score in top
25% of providers in England) are excellent;

University entrance - 100% of university applicants successful with their first or second choice (including
clearing);

OFSTED inspection in March 2024 confirmed the school as good but judged that the school might be
outstanding on its next inspection (scheduled for 2025);

One of our students won Under 18 National Indoor Rowing Championships;

Nine of the school’s football teams reached the Poole and East Dorset Schools’ final;

The athletics team competed at Millfield School in the summer;

The school are very proud to achieve the prestigious Gold Healthy Schools Award,;

We held a production of We Will Rock You in November in conjunction with Parkstone Grammar School as
well as a selection of musical events in school and outside school such as the Poole Schools Music
Association Christmas concert at the lighthouse in December and the School Christmas Carol Service at
Wimbome Minster;

We reached the National Space Design finals in London and the National Robotics Finals.

Review of Activities

a. Teaching and Learning

Three A-level subjects had progress rates as measured by the ALPS system in the top 10% in England
(economics, electronics & physics) and seven subjects had progress rates in the top 25% in England (art -
3D design, art - fine, business, geology, government & politics, history and music);

Four GCSE / level 2 subjects had progress rates as measured by the SISRA system of over +1 grade
compared to the national average progress (art - 3D design, electronics, history and mathematics - further);

Every academic department focused on embedding the school's literacy and reading strategy into their
subject.

b. Staffing and Governance

Increased use of supply to cover staff long term absences.
Successful recruitment actions for any staff losses;

Use of Integrated curriculum planning to ensure increased efficiency;
Changes to the governance structure following NGA review.

¢. Buildings and Grounds

0Ongoing maintenance programme refurbishing classrooms;

Started refurbishment of the canteen area and part of the main hall;

Continued negotiations over gas and electricity contracts for 2023/2024 and future years;

Numerous site and IT improvement projects;

Conversion of one ground floor laboratery to be multidiscipline with assistance from a grant from the
Wolfson Foundation.

d. Funding

Tight conirol of expenditure as general costs rise and funding reduces;

Ongoing income is reducing in real terms as grants for additional pay and pensions do not cover the
increased costs;

Provision of school meals agreements continued with Hillbourne, Montacute; Beaucroft and Broadstone
first and middle school;

Start of lettings of the Sportshall now booked every evening and weekend in term time there will be an
increased focus on securing holiday bookings in 2024/25;

Continued sharing of best practice and advice between SWAT Business and Finance Managers, and the
Dorset Business Managers Forum;

New to you uniform sales and fund-raising events including a Christmas Fayre managed by the PSA;
Grants and Trusts from Wolfson Foundation for refurbishment of science lab; WPA Foundation and UMUK
for music equipment.

-9-
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

e. Curriculum

At Key Stage 5, the breadth of the curriculum was reduced due to funding pressures, so the school can no
longer afford to continue to deliver A-level ancient history or A-level geology. Nevertheless progress rates
improved in 2024 so the school is now in the top 25% of providers using the ALPS progress index for A-
level;

Students continue to achieve well in a wide range of subjects at Key Stage 4, with the average number of
GCSE entries being 10.2 in 2024 compared to a national average of 7.8 (last available DFE data — 2023),
the school's 2024 Progress 8 score being 0.69 and 69% of students entering the EBacc in 2024 compared
to a national average of 39% (last available DFE dafa — 2023);

The third phase of the Key Stage 3 curriculum review took place, ensuring that the Year 9 curriculum was
challenging and aligned with the new key stage 3 assessment criteria with appropriate assessments;

The school's six community values (compassion, integrity, motivation, respect, team-work & wisdom)
continue io be embedded in all aspects of the school's formal and informal curriculum.

f. Pastoral/pupil provision

The Bryson Base continues to be a positive and nurturing space for SEND students and is used full-time by
ohe student who would otherwise be refusing to come to school. Ofsted praised the provision in the visit in
March 2024,
We appointed a SEND lead in March 2024 who manages the day to day running of the SEND team and
acts as deputy SENDCo. We also had a new Learning Support Assistant join the department in June 2024;
SEND students performed above the naticnhal average range at both GCSE and A-Level;
The Behaviour Hub continues to be a well used resource for the school. The Head of Year 10 has oversight
of the provision. To build on this provision in 2024/25, we will be refining our processes and consolidating
teacher's understanding of how to use and engage with the offer;
Following the appointment of our current SENDCo and deputy headteacher to Headieacher from
September 2025, we have made some changes and appointments to further strengthen this area:
» A new Pastoral Assistant Head who will have oversight of behaviour and attendance and lead on
all pastoral matters in the main school.
* A separate Assistant Head and SENDCo Who will also have oversight for vulnerable groups.
* A new DSL who will also become a member of SLT with the authority to carry out their duties in full.
This is a hugely beneficial role for the school as they are full time and able to commit 100% of their
time to safeguarding in the school.

g. Expanding ICT provision

Anew entry/exit system introduced removing the requirement for paper records;

Transition to Office365, Teams and Sharepoint;

Move to Cloud based solution for finance system;

Continued investment in WiFi and computer refresh programmes across the school site to support students
and staff;

Cyber Essentials Certification of IT gained in January 2024;

Cyber-security training for all staff and governors Jan 2024,

New music timetabling software purchased in July for roll out in 2024/25 removing the need for paper
records.

h. Inspection and Accountability

Continued with code of conduct introduced in 2022/2023 for governors and for the staff which was
introduced in 2021/22;

A new induction program with GDPR, cyber training and safeguarding training for all new employees.;
Annual safeguarding fraining for all employees.

Comprehensive internal scrutiny review by SLL Accounting Ltd during 2023/2024;

Full Health & safety audit report undertaken by Dorset County Council with recommendations being worked
through during 2024/2025;

Risk assessments for fire; asbestos and legionella with action plan in place for 2024/25 to follow up on
recommendations.

-10-
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Key performance indicators
Staffing Costs as a % of Total Expenditure (excluding capital and FRS 102 Pension)

2023/24 2022723 2021/22 2020721 2019/20
Total Staff Costs 6,656,041 6,077,728 5,848,877 5,942,568 5,624,111
Total Expenditure 8,209,563 7,762,8401 7,325,210 7,034,005 6,761,216
Total Stafi Costs as a % of 81.1% 79.3% 79.8% 79.8% 83.2%
Expenditure

Split of Staff Costs (%)

% 2023/24 2022123 2021722 2020721 2019/20
Teaching Staff 64.80% 63.84% 65.50% 87.72% 68.23%
Admin & Support 25.80% 26.46% 25.03% 23.67% 23.22%
Management 9.40% 9.70% 9.47% 8.60% 8.55%

Going concemn
After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Governors has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust

has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Board
of Governors continues fo adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the statement of accounting policies.

Governors have discussed the 2023/2024 financial performance of the trading subsidiary and support it as a aoing
concern. Since it started in 2014, it has transferred its annual surpluses to the Academy Trust. Without these
significant transfers, the Academy Trust would have not survived the many years of poor Government funding.

Due to the recent history of chronic under-funding until 2020/2021, the Academy Trust has worked hard in the last
decade to rebuild and protect a reserve largely achieved by the transfer of surpluses generated by the trading
subsidiary, and careful decision making on staffing, curriculum demands and academy expenditure. However much
of this reserve had been utilised by August 2023 to complete the Sports Hall build as planned. Although funding has
dropped and is now at less than minimum per pupil funding and we have a lower level of reserves, we do continue
to have a strong cash balance and steady cashflows as well as a plan to return to surplus in the 2024/25 academic
year giving confidence to the Governing Board that the school remains a going concern. it does however remain of
utmost importance that financial scrutiny and control remains upper most in the school and Governing Body's
approach to the future.

We are continually reviewing ways to keep catering costs down while maintaining the high standards expected.
Governors are keeping the performance of the trading subsidiary under regular review.

-1 -
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Financial review

The detailed accounts are contained on pages 30 to 34 and include the following statements:

* Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities (SoFA) including Income and Expenditure Account and
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses;

* Consolidated Balance Sheet;
= Academy Balance Sheet

« Statement of Cash Flow Statement.

Notes to the Financial Statements are contained from pages 35 to 58.

The highlights for the year ended 31 August 2024 are (excluding Pension and Fixed Assets Funds):

2023/2024

£

£

Unrestricted

General Fund

Restricted

General Fund

Total

General Funds

Incoming Resources 998,747 7,392,972 8,391,719
Resources Expended {665,913) (7,813,589} (8,479,502)
Net Incoming/(outgoing) Resources 332,834 (420,617} (87,783)
Transfers between Funds (524,250) 416,871 {107,379)
Net Incoming/(outgoing) Resources (191,416) (3,746) (195,162)
Brought Forward Funds 296,571 57,089 353,660
Carried Forward Funds 105,155 53,343 158,498

Commentary on 2023/2024 Results — The impact of the ongoing cost of living crisis and invasion of Ukraine,
resulting in continually increasing energy and consumer prices as well as reducing income led the school to tightly
control expenditure for 2023/2024. However it remains extraordinarily difficult for schools to navigate these
additional cost pressures without additional Government funding support. Taking this into account the Trading
Subsidiary ended the year with a surplus of £77,719 and the Academy Trust with a deficit of £272,881.

-12-
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Reserves policy

The Academy Trust aims to carry forward a prudent level of resources from the General Annual Grant, the General
Non-GAG Restricted Fund and the General Unrestricted Fund fo cover short, medium and long term policy needs.
The Governors' policy focuses on adequate reserves held for years where funding levels and cost increases are
predicted {o adversely affect financial performance and stability.

The Academy Trust has worked hard in the last decade to rebuild and protect a reserve largely due to the transfer of
surpluses generated by the trading subsidiary, and careful decision making on staffing, curriculum demands and
academy expenditure. However much of this reserve has been utilised to complete the Sports Hall build as planned.
With the fower level of reserves it remains of utmost importance that financial scrutiny and control remains upper
most in the school and Governing Body's approach to the future.

The Academy Trust has a large pension scheme deficit. This deficit potentially could result in a cash flow effect in
the form of changing employers’ pension contributicns over a period of years. This liability would not crystallise and
is backed by the government.

At the end of the year under review the balances held in these funds were as follows:

£ 2023/2024 |2022/2023 |202 1/2022 1202042021 [2019/2020 |2018/2019

Restricted Funds 53,343 57,089] 521,353 223,694 170,292 127,431
Unrestricted Fund 105,155 286,571 550,339 541,709] 427,836 489,242
Pension Deficit {811,000)] (920,000} (1,134,000)] (4,641,000} (4,062,000} (2,918,000)
Fixed Asset Fund 14,309,121 14,602,967] 14,073,783 11,550,121] 11,799,142] 12,114,168
Total Funds 13,656,619| 14,036,627] 14,011,475| 7,674,524| B8,335,270] 9,812,841

The Resources Committee reviews on a regular basis the level of reserves held by the Academy Trust. The main
change in our reserves in recent years was the reduction of £718,032 in 2022/2023 due to the school's contribution
towards a new sports hall. This was primarily funded by CIF (£4m) and there was also some additional funding
from the Talbot Village Trust. A difficult 2023/2024 has seen a further reduction of £195,162. This resulted largely
from inadequate government funding for significant salary and pension cost increases, combined with inflationary
pressures across much of the remaining cost base and some unexpected additional maintenance costs.

The result is that the current level of reserves is lower than the governors would ideally wish to see, which is around
£500k (the approximate salary costs for a month). There is significant focus on increasing the reserves over the
coming years through raising income and careful cost management. This will allow the school to support future CIF
bids with contributions towards other capital projects. The governors are conscious that rebuilding the reserves will
be challenging if the current [evels of government funding persist.

Investment policy
The Academy regularly reviews the scope and level of funds in interest bearing accounts to protect fragile reserves
and the likely calls on these by unfunded cost pressures facing the education sector.

Decisions and statements relating to this are regularly reviewed by the Resources Committee.

The Academy Trust has limited options in relation to investments as it is bound by ESFA rules. The Academy has
chosen to put available cash reserves into an interest bearing savings bank account. This cash is available on 32
days' notice and can be withdrawn from this account without penalty.
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POOLE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Principal risks and uncertainties
During 2023/24, Governors identified the following principal risks and uncertainties facing the Academy Trust, all of

which are detailed fully in the Academy's Risk Register which is reviewed annually.
Leadership Risk:

Governors have put in place clear succession plans and continue to review and monitor arrangements for
recruitment and the development of existing staff to minimise the risk resuiting from changes in key staff.

Govarnors have supported performance management of all leaders.

A strategic plan is in place as are plans to increase the promotion of the school both for pupils and as a great place
to work.

Staffing Levels:

Governors have supported leaders in succession planning and reviewing staffing needs strategically and aligned
with costs in an integrated curriculum planning model.

Governors have supported the recruitment of a marketing person for all marketing elements but including marketing
the school as an employer of choice.

Data Protection / Cybersecurity

Increased protection has been put in place, with greater security around all elements of our IT estate. New staff all
have GDPR ftraining and cyber security remains a key element for the school. During 2023/24 we have completed
the cyber essentials process and introduced regular training and reinforcement of cyber issties across all staff and
Govermnors.

We have reviewed our IT systems and moved the finance system into a Cloud based more secure environment. We
will also be looking to move our main information system to a cloud base system in the near future with the aim of
continual improvement and ensuring that our data and systems remain secure and as up to date as possible.
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Financial Risk:

The Governors have given due consideration to the risks associated with financial mismanagement andfor
compliance failures.

Governors are are also focussed on Local Government Pension Scheme deficit since becoming an Academy and
the impact of Employer contribution increases following triennial reviews.

Governors are supporting a review of all major confracts as they come up for renewal to ensure we are getting the
best value for money.

Overall the school promotes a tight control on costs, reducing energy consumption and increasing efficiency savings
wherever possible, as well as looking for new income sfreams such as lettings, trust and granis and increased
provision of catering.

Physical Asset Risk:

Govemnors have given due consideration to the risks associated with any possible failure of the IT and physical
assets serving the school community. This year has seen press interest in RAAC which is not an issue for the
school, however we have a long term maintenance plan to address and prioritise premises issues, while the site
team manage the day to day maintenance we wiil also be submitting applications to CIF for any larger works in the
future.

Emergency Risks:

This relates to adverse weather, flooding or security incidents as well as health and safety issues and management
strategies are adopted as appropriate fo reduce the impact on the school community. The increasing frequency of
extreme weather events (heatwaves, flooding and high winds) are of congem to the school and mitigations include
development of a woodland management plan, reviewing security on a regular basis, including lockdown and fire
alarm testing, ongoing maintenance of lighting, gutters, roofs and all elements of the school campus.

QOver 2023/24 we have had a full health and safety audit and full risk assessments for fire; legionella; PE equipment
and asbestos which has let to a maintenance action plan to cover all recommendations which will be undertaken
over the next year.

Safeguarding:

Governors review the safeguarding risks on a regular basis and there are a number of controls and mitigations in
place with an ongoing plan for continuous improvement. There has been work with staff and governors to reinforce
the code of conduct and ongeing promotion of the behaviour policy and all related safeguarding with students. We
have a designated safeguarding lead as well as other trained safeguarding offices (including Prevent Lead; Mental
Health Leads; Online champion, anti-bullying lead and Safeguarding Governor).

Premises and Safety:

An increased focus is being given fo safety on school premises, which includes wear and tear and damage to
school assets. The Resources Committee regularly assesses and improves the safety of the physical environment
for pupils, staff and visitors and receives report on this at each meeting. A health and safety audit has taken place
and the school has started to address any issues, while developing a plan to cover all areas. CCTV has been
maintained across the year to mitigate the risk of wilful damage, with the costs of repairs for wilful damage being
recovered.

The governors also monitor the more specific risk of accident on arrival or departure from school, which includes
clear guidance to parents regarding driving onto site; separation of areas for cars, cyclist and pedestrians; staff
supervision at these times; guidance on off-site parking and drop off and implementing a2 more secure back gate.
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School Trips

Governors have given due consideration to the risks associated with trips and activities involving the pupils and the
risk management strategies to minimise these. All scheol trips have a govemnance approval process through new
software — Evolve. All trips are reviewed in terms of cover and any constraints and full risk assessmenis are
completed as part of the review and sign oif. All staff have relevant training and insurance in place as required and
there are clear expectations of student behaviour on any trip.

Our risk register has changed through the year and will be reviewed in 2024/25 to ensure that it is a working
document and can be used to fully assess and manage risks at each of the sub-committees as well as the Full
Governing Board

Fundraising
The Academy Trust fund raises through its parental donations to support the school's extra-curricular activities and
through voluntary contributions for day school trips.

Qur Parents Staff Association (part of the School Trust Fund) fundraise cn the Academy Trust's behalf. This activity
is monitored by the Academy Trust through the Headteacher and other staff involvement,

To the best of the Academy Trust's knowledge, there have been no complaints relating to fundraising activities.

The Academy Trust has a commitment to the protection of the public, including vulnerable people from
unreasonably intrusive or persistent fundraising approaches and undue pressure to donate. The Academy Trust
makes it clear that all donations are voluntary.

Plans for future periods

Poole Grammar pursues the strategic vision of providing a thriving, successful school delivering outstanding
academic results and well rounded, resilient students, staffed by outstanding people, with outstanding facilities to
support the school and local community. To support and deliver this vision, a comprehensive and ambitious School
Development Plan has been developed to cover 2024/2025 and the medium term.

School Development Plan 2024/2025

The school development plan remains in place and will be reviewed over the winter term, this would normally be
earlier but has been delayed until the new headteacher and Senicr Leadership Team are all in place. The themes
until that time are as follows:

1. safeguarding;

teaching, learning and curriculum development;
leadership and staff development;

pastoral matters including behaviour and attendance;
assessment and reporting;

communication with stakeholders and partnership;

buildings and resources;

S T R

admissions;
9. mental health and wellbeing

Department and development plans encourage participation of all staff in the SDP. 2024/2025 personal objectives
are also aligned to the appropriate SDP activities within these main themes.
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Funds held as custodian trustee on behalf of others

The Pocle Grammar School Trust Fund (PGSTF) - This is a registered charity independent of the school and has its
own trustees and is subject to a financial review by its auditors. lts purpose is; "the promotion of charitable
educational trusts for the benefit of Poole Grammar School in the county of Dorsel”,

In accordance with the trust deed the Headleacher is a trusiee. Two trustees are appointed by The Poole Old
Grammarians Association (POGA) and two by the Paole Grammar School Parents Staff Association (PSA). None of
the trustees receive any remuneration for holding their office.

The PGSTF is divided Into various divisions one of which is amenifies. This receives donations from parents and the
PGSTF, where applicable, reclaims gift aid on these donations and makes such disbursements to the schoal
towards its amenities costs for pupils. The school runs an amenities committee which reviews and approves as
appropriate bids for use of parental donations for pupil activities. The school administers the collection of the
amenities donations on behalf of the PGSTF without making a charge for this. Donations come directly into the

school.

The Academy Trust alse administers the financial arrangements and support relating to the schools’ involvement in
the Maths for Education and Industry programme (Dorsst Further Maths).

Auditor

In so far as the Govemnars are aware:
- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and
- the Governors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit

information and o estabiish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Governors ? incovporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Governors, as the
company director 12132124121 and signed on its behalf by:

LAAA

K J Power
Chair of the Governing Body and Academy Trust
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POOLE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Scope of responsibility

As Govemnors we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Poole Grammar School has an
effective and appropriate system of confrols, financial and otherwise. Such a system however Is designad to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Governors, we have reviewed and taken account of the Academy Trust handbock and the competency
framework for governance.,

The Board of Governors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher, as accounting officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Poole
Grammar School and the Secretary of State for Education. The accounting officer is also responsible for reporting to
the Board of Governors any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplemenis that described in the Governors' Report and in the
Statement of Governors' Responsibilities. The Board of Governors has formally met 7 times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Governors was as follows:

Governors Meetings attended Out of possible
N Bichard 7 7
K J Power (Chair of the Goveming Body and Academy Trust) 6 7
A Steel (Resigned 14 October 2024) 4 7
S Bowden 3 7
D Newell (Resigned 3 November 2023) 0 2
M Holmes Evans (Resigned 15 January 2024) 1 3
A Smith (Resigned 31 August 2024} 6 6
AThomas 5 7
H Hall 5 7
K Stevens (Resigned 12 January 2024) 3 3
S Fry (Resigned 10 November 2023) 1 1
M Robertson 6 7
F Gollan (Resigned 13 May 2024) 0 5
M Barnard 5 7
H Yeo (Appointed 10 January 2024) 2 5
J C Cope (Appointed 13 May 2024) 3 4
L Culkin {Appointed 26 March 2024) 2 4
A Pinder (Appointed 13 May 2024} 2 3
K Etheridge (Appointed 1 September 2024) 0 0

An independent external review of governance was commissioned by the school in November 2022 and completed
by the National Governance Association (NGA) in June 2023. The report highlighted the strengths and weaknesses
of the Governing Body. A number of recommendations were made which were discussed at a strategy day on 13th
September 2023 and the changes were implemented over 2023/24. The key changes made are the exisfing
Premises, Finance and Staffing committee were amalgamated into the Resources committee and the Education
Committee was renamed Educafion and Standards and encompasses all aspects of education including
admissions. The table above shows all possible meetings (Full Governing Board as well as subcommittees) and
how many were attended
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Conflicts of interest
Each academic year, Governors declare their interests on the register of interests form. Declarations are also
included for the Directors of the school's trading subsidiary.

These are all summarised and regular updates are posted on the school website. In addition, declarations of
interest are declared for every Full Governors and every Governor sub-committee. If there is a conflict of interest,
then the Governor concerned is expected not to vote and or leave the meeting if required for that particuiar issue

Governance reviews
Following the independent review by the NGA and subsequent strategy day in September 2023, a number of
actions were agreed, and all actions and changes made cver the course of 2023/24.

Resources Committee

The Resources Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Governors. Its purpose is to maintain effective
oversight of funds, the Finance Committee receives timely financial reports for each period of the year. In addition
to meeting 4 times a year to review all aspects of financial operations including regular internal scrutiny reports, a
separate budget preparation briefing meeting is held for Finance Govemnors. Financial performance and issues are
raised at every Full Governors meeting.

Key Governors were aclively involved with the SLT over the course of the year including the recruitment of a new
Head Teacher.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Governors Meetings attended Qui of possible

N Bichard

K J Power (Chair of the Governing Body and Academy Trust)
A Steel (Resigned 14 October 2024)

S Bowden

A Smith (Resigned 31 August 2024)

K Stevens (Resigned 12 January 2024)

M Robertson

H Yeo (Appointed 10 January 2024)

J C Cope (Appointed 13 May 2024)

APinder {Appointed 13 May 2024)

BN 2= O D
W ODNITNDOO A

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in return for the taxpayer resources
received.
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The accounting officer considers how the Academy Trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reporis to the Board of Governors where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data or by using a framework where appropriate. The accounting officer for the
Academy Trust has delivered improved value for meney during the year by:

* Use of Integrated Financial Curriculum Model for annual budgeting, forecasting and all staffing decisions;

* Closely managing all spend including capital and normal day to day expenditure;

 Use of Schools’ Buying Hub Southwest for framework agreements and tendering process for water coolers
in 2023/24;

* Negotiation of discounted prices for waste disposal and water coolers;

+ Ongoing review of all major confracts;

+ Continued energy negotiations with electricity and gas following a 12-month confract now signed a fixed 3-
year contract to avoid the volatility and increases expected in the market. (October 2024);

» Use of skilled in-house Site Teams for ongoing refurbishment of school facilities;

* Allocation of curriculum budgets based on student numbers, cumiculum cost demands. Those facing
national curriculum changes or requiring critical teaching resources can bid for a centrally controlled
curriculum contingency.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reascnable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of efiectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The system of internal control has been in place in Poole Grammar School for the period 1 September 2023 to 31
August 2024 and up fo the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Governors has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Governors is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up
to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts. The risk register is a cornerstone of this assessment and
is now reviewed at every sub-committee meeting.

The risk and control framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and adminisirative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

« comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reporis
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Governors;

* regular reviews by the Resources Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the

forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

identification and management of risks;

review of risks is a standing item on each sub-commiitee agenda.

The Academy Trust has moved away from a Responsible Officer arrangements that had been in place up to 2019,
to an internal scrutiny programme of review steered by the Finance Governors and undertaken by SLL Accountancy
Ltd. This has been in place since 2019/2020, with recommendations submitted and presented to the Finance
Governors and regular updates on progress given.
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The internal scrutiny reviews are very comprehensive and include recommendations on best practice and
improvements in Governance and internal controls. The internal scrutiny review covered financial and non-financial
controls, review of progress from previous external and internal audit reports, financial reports, risk register, trust
website compliance, month end closedown, Payroll and HR, Banking arrangements, budgeting and forecasting
process, procurement, fraud checklist, cyber securily, data protection and Govermance documentation.

Review of effectiveness
As accounting officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

« Internal scrutiny report and recommendations undertaken by SLL Accounting Ltd in 2023/24 ;an action plan is in
place for all recommendations,

« Fuil health & safety audit by Dorset County Council; an action plan is being developed and actions underway,;

= Full risk assessments for fire; ashestos and legionella undertaken and action plans in place to action the

recommendations;

Reports as appropriate from the Data Protection Officer on GDPR and cyber-crime issues;

Work of the external auditor;

Financial management and governance self-assessment process;

Work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have the responsibility for the development and

maintenance of the intemal contro] framework.

LI L

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control hy the Resource commiliee and_a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the

system is in place.

Approved by order of the Bp#td of Goverriors on ‘1“7-'5’0’?-}and signed on its behalf by:

K J Power it

Chair of the Governing Body and Academy
Trust
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STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

As accounting officer of Poole Grammar School, | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Trust
Board of Gavernors and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and management, under the
funding agreement in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023, including

responsibifities for estates safety and management.

I confirm that | and the Academy Trust's Board of Governors are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and condilions of funding under the
Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2023.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be natified to the Board of Governors

and ESFA.

K Etheridge
Accounting Officer

2iz) 2024
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POOLE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF GOVERNORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Govemors (who act as trustees for Poole Grammar School and are also the directors of Poole Grammar
School for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Governors' report and the accounts in
accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 published by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and
applicahle law and regulations.

Company law requires the Governors to prepare accounts for each financial year. Under company law, the
Governors must not approve the accounts unless thay are satisfled that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income
and expenditure, for that period.

In preparing these accounts, the Governors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« gbserve the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to
2024,

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

«+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subjest to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

+ prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business.

The Govemnors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transaclions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial posilion of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Governors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requiremenis both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DIE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Governors are responsible for the mai ance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the charitable company's website,/Legiklation in the Unitad Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of accounts may differ frofn legisfation in other jurisdictions.

f the Bdard of Govemors on i’u\ﬂlﬂ* and signed on its behalf by:

M

K J Power /

Chair of the Governing Body and Academy Trust

Approved by order of the merrber.
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POOLE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF POOLE GRAMMAR
SCHOOL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated accounts of Poole Grammar School (the ‘parent academy trust)} and its
subsidiary (the 'Group") for the year ended 31 August 2024 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
activities, the consclidated balance sheet, the academy frust balance sheet, the consolidated statement of cash
flows and the notes io the consolidated financial statements, inciuding a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Acceunting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP
2018 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the accounts:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Group and parent academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2024 and
of its Group's incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the
year then ended,

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2023 to 2024.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated accounts' section of our report. We are independent of the Group and the parent academy trust in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated accounts in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Govemnors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Governors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The Governors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the information included in the governors
annual report other than the accounts and our auditor’s report thereon. Other information includes the Governors'
report (incorporating the strategic report and directors' report) the governance statement and the statement of
regularity, propriety and compliance. Our opinion on the accounts does not cover the other information and, except
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the accounts, our responsibility is to read the cother information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated accounts or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
accounts or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF POOLE GRAMMAR
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

fn our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit;

- the information given in the Governors' report {which includes the strategic report and directors' report) for the
financial year for which the consolidated accounts are prepared is consistent with the consolidated accounts;
and

- the Governers' report including the incorporated sirategic report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal reguirements,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and undersianding of the group and parent academy trust and its environment

obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors'

report, included within the Governers' report.

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, by the parent academy trust or retums adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

- the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

- certain disclosures of Governors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Governors

As explained more fully in the statement of Govemnors' responsibilities, the Governors (who are also the directors of
the academy trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the accounts and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Governors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
eITor.

In preparing the accounts, the Governaors are responsible for assessing the group and parent academy trust's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Governors either intend to liquidate the academy trust, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accounts as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaraniee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these accounts.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consclidated accounts is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: http:/Aww.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.
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Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

The objectives of our audit in respect of fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
accounts due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of material
misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate responses to those assessed risks;
and to respond appropriately to instances of fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit. However, the
primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both management and those charged with

governance of the parent academy trust and group.

Our approach was as follows:

* The engagement pariner selected staff for the audit, led by persons who it was deemed had sufficient
experience and who had the required competence and skills to be able o ideniify or recognise non-

compliance with laws and regulations.

* We assessed the risk of irregulariies as part of our audit planning, and ongoing review, including those
due to fraud. Management override was identified as & significant fraud risk. This is due to the ability to

bypass controls through inappropriate expenditure and accounting policies adopted.

* Completeness of income was identified as a significant risk to the audit, as grant income may not be

recognised in accordance with the SORP.

* We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the academy and
group and we considered the most significant to be Academies Accounts Direction, the Charity SORP,
Companies Act 2006, UK financial reporting standards as issued by the Financial Reporting Council and
UK Taxation legislation. We considered how the academy trust and group complies with these

requirements by discussions with management and those charged with governance.

= We inquired of management and those charged with governance as to any known instances of non-
compliance or suspected non-compliance with faws and regulations. Consideration was also made of the

internal controls in place to mitigate the identified risks.

» We assessed the control environment, documenting the systems, controls and processes adopted. The
audit approach incorporated a combination of controls where appropriate, analytical review and
substantive procedures involving tests of transactions and balances. Any irregularities noted were

discussed with management and additional corroborative evidence was obtained as required.

* The consolidated financial statements of the group incorporate the resuits of the subsidiary company.
Moore (South) LLP are auditors to the whole group and the same approach has been adopted to the

subsidiary company as is appropriate to that entity.
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To address the risk of fraud through management override we:
» performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;
tested journal entries to identify any unusual transactions;
tested items of expenditure to ensure that they were valid and appropriate;
confirmed monthly management accounts were reviewed by the board,;
assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates were
indicative of potential bias; and
* reviewed the disclosures within the accounts to ensure they meet the requirements of the accounting
standards and relevant legislation.

In response to the risk of irregularities with regards to completeness of income we:
= completed analytical work, to include comparison with prior periods;
» agreed a sample of documentation to confim that relevant entries were reflected in the accounting
records and allocated to the correct period; and
» reviewed minutes of governors meetings and confirmed income sources mentioned were included
correctly within the accounts.

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and
regulations are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance.
Auditing standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations to
enquiry of the directors and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they may
involve deliberate concealment or collusion.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the parent academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the parent academy
trust's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the parent
academy trust and the academy trust's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Esme Shakeshaft (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behaif of Moore (South} LLP

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor 33 The Clarendon Centre
Salisbury Business Park
Dairy Meadow Lane
Salisbury
Wiltshire
SP12Td
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO POOLE GRAMMAR SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS
FUNDING AGENCY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

fn accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 23 July 2024 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
received by Poole Grammar School during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied to
the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Poole Grammar School and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Poole Grammar School and ESFA those matters
we are required o state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than Poole Grammar School and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for
the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Poole Grammar School's accounting officer and the reporting accountant
The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Poole Grammar Scheol's funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education dated 23 March 2010 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended
by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance,
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement leiter and the requirements of
the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in
carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received
during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament
or that the financia! transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement lefter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:
* consideration of the evidence supporting the accounting officers statement on regularity, propriety and
compliance;
analytical procedures on the general activities of the academy trust;
a review of minutes of committees and board meetings which may be relevant to regularity;
consideration of discussions with key personnel including the accounting officer and governing body;
tests of controi have been carried out on a control activity which are relevant to regularity;
substantive testing of individual transactions.
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Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditura disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Reporting Accountant
Moore (South) LLP

33 The Clarendon Centre
Salisbury Business Park
Dairy Meadow Lane
Salisbury

Wiltshire

SP12TJ
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INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total Total
funds General Fixed asset 2024 2023
Noies £ £ £ £ £
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3 - 33,577 25,054 58,531 142,325
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations 4 755,103 7,359,395 - 38,114,498 7,660,762
Other trading activities 5 232,076 - - 232,076 120,753
Investments 6 11,568 - - 11,568 8,159
Total 998,747 7,392,972 25954 8,417,673 7,931,999
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 7 149,891 - - 149,891 103,455
Charitable activities:
- Educational operations 8 516,022 7,800,589 427179 8,743,790 8,106,392
Total 7 665,913 7,800,589 427179 8,893,681 8,209,847
Net incomef({expenditure) 332,834 (407,617)  (401,225) (476,008) (277,848)
Transfers between funds 19 {524,250) 416,871 107,379 - -
Other recognised gains/(losses}
Actuarial gains on defined benefit
pension schemes 21 - 96,000 - 96,000 303,000
Net movement in funds (191,416) 105,254 (293,848)  (380,008) 25,152
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 296,571 (862,211) 14,602,967 14,036,627 14,011,475
Total funds carried forward 105,155 (757,657) 14,309,121 13,656,619 14,036,627
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Comparative year information
Year ended 31 August 2023

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants
Charitable activities:

- Funding for educational operations
Other trading activities

Investments

Total

Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Charitable activities:

- Educational operations

Total

Net income/{expenditure}
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Notes

o

18

21

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
funds General Fixed asset 2023
£ £ £ £
- 65,076 77,249 142,325
525627 7135135 - 7,660,762
120,753 - - 120,753
8,159 - - 8,159
654,539 7,200,211 77,249 7,931,999
103,455 - - 103,455
376,268 7,372,117 358,007 8,106,392
479,723 7,372,117 358,007 8,209,847
174,816 (171,206) (280,758) (277.,848)
(428,584) (381,358) 809,942 -
- 303,000 - 303,000
(253,768)  (250,264) 529,184 25,152
550,339 (612,647) 14,073,783 14,011,475
296,571 (862,911) 14,602,967 14,036,627
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2024

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Notes

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due within ons
year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Net asseis before defined benefit pension
scheme liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability
Total nef assets

Funds of the Academy Trust:
Restricted funds

- Fixed asset funds

- Restricted income funds

- Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

The accounts
are signed o

eir behalf by

K J Power

Chair of the Governing Body and Academy Trust

12
13

15

16

17

21

19

19

2024 2023

£ £ £ £

. 48

14,309,121 14,602,919

14,309,121 14,602,967

212,553 437,968
794,011 1,279,103
1,006,564 1,717,071
(685,060) (1,363,411}

321,504 353,660

14,630,625 14,956,627

(163,006) S

14,467,619 14,056,627
(811,000) (920,000)

13,656,619 14,036,627

14,309,121 14,602,967

53,343 57,089
(811,000) (920,000)

13,551,464 13,740,056

105,155 296,571

13,656,619 14,036,627

pages ‘30 to 57 were approved by the Governors and authorised for issue on 11“7—!%7"" and

Company Number 07666111
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2024
ACADEMY TRUST BALANCE SHEET 2024 2023
Notes £ £ £ £
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 12 - 48
Tangible assets 13 14,309,121 14,602,919
Investments 14 1 1
14,309,122 14,602,968
Current assets
Debtors 15 233,108 455,800
Cash at bank and in hand 699,072 1,264,606
932,180 1,720,406
Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 16 {685,080) (1,363,411}
Net current assets 247,120 356,995
Total assets less current liabilities 14,656,242 14,959,963
Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year 17 (163,008) -
Deferred income 18 - -
Net assets before defined benefit pension
scheme Kabhility 14,393,236 14,958,863
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 21 {(811,000) {920,000)
Total net assets 13,582,236 14,039,863
Funds of the Academy Trust:
Restricted funds 19
- Fixed asset funds 14,309,121 14,602,967
- Restricted income funds 53,343 57,089
- Pension reserve {811,000) {920,000}
Total restricted funds 13,551,464 13,740,056
Unrestricted income funds 19 30,772 298,907
Total funds 13,582,236 14,039,963

The accounts on gzges 3@ to 57 wers approved by the Governors and authorised for issue on ‘ﬂlll‘lﬁ"-%and
are signed on tiejf behalf by:

sssnsnrrernsfinranann .......W\/J
K J Power /

Chair of the Governing Body and Academy Trust
Company Number 07666111
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POOLE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Notes
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash {used in)/provided by operating
activities 22

Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capital grants from DfE Group

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
New other loan

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2024
£ £
(570,399)
11,568
25,954
(133,333)
(95,811)
181,118
181,118
(485,092)
1,279,103

794,011

2023
£ £
3,334,248
8,159
77,249
(4,015,515)
(3,930,107)
(595,859)
1,874,962

1,278,103
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POOLE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Accounting policies

Poole Grammar School is a charitable company limited by guarantee incorporated in England and Wales.
The address of its principal place of business is given on page 1 and the nature of its operations are set out in
the Governors' repert.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted}, judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The accounts of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared
under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended
Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charites SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies
Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Going concern

The Governors assess whether the use of going concem is appropriate, ie whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to continue as a going concem. The Governors make this assessment in respect of a period of at
least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the accounts.

Due to the recent history of chronic under-funding uniil 2020/2021, the Academy Trust has worked hard in the
last decade to rebuild and protect the Trust's reserves, largely achieved by the transfer of surpluses
generated by the trading subsidiary, and careful decision making on staffing, curriculum demands and
academy expenditure. However much of this reserve had been utilised by August 2023to complete the
Sports Hall build as planned. Although funding has dropped and is now at less than minimum per pupil
funding and the Academy Trust has a lower level of reserves, the Trust continues to have a strong cash
balance and steady cashflows, as well as a plan to refurn to sumlus in the 2024/25 academic year giving
confidence that the Academy Trust remains a going concern. [t does however remain of utmost importance
that financial scrutiny and contrel remains upper most in the Trust's approach to the fuiure.

The Govemnors have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trusts ability
fo continue as a going concern. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the accounts.

Basis of consolidation

The Statement of Financial Activities (SoFA) and Balance Sheet consolidate the financial statements of the
parent academy and its subsidiary company, Poole Grammar School Enterprises Limited, over which it has
control. The results of both companies are consolidated on a line by line basis. No separate SoFA has been
presented for the parent company alone as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.

These financial statements comprising the consoclidated Statement of Financial Activities, the Consolidated
and Parent Academy Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes on
pages 30 to 58 constitute the consolidated financial statements of Poole Grammar School for the financial
year ended 31 August 2024.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has enfitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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1.5

Accounting policies {Continued)

Grants

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entittement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitliement occurs before income is
received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflected in the balarice sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are
recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related
conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably,

Donaticns

Ponations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured. Gift aid is claimed on eligible donations and
this is recognised on a receivable basis.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settiement, and the amount of
the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and
support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a
basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and
depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable frading.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.
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1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Accounting policies (Continued)

intangible fixed assets and amortisation

Intangible assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic benefits are
probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are initially recognised
at cost and are subsequently measured at cost net of amortisation and any provision for impairment.

Amortisation is provided on intangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a
straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:
= Purchased computer software 20% Straight Line

Tangible fixed asseis and depreciation
Assets costing £1,000 (and computers and laptops costing below £1,000 each) or more are capitalised as
tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the continued
use of the asset, the related grants are credited fo a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial
activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to
the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off
the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Buildings 2% Straight Line

ICT Infrastructure 20% Straight Line
ICT Equipment (computers, laptops) 33% Straight Line
Fixtures, fittings & equipment 10% Siraight Line
Motor vehicles 20% Straight Line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until
they are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in
the statement of financial activities.

Liahilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, itis
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the amount of the settlement
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will
pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must
pravide.

Leased assets
Renials under operating leases are charged to the statement of financial activities on straight line basis over
the lease term.

Leasing arrangements which transfer to the Academy substantially take all the benefits and risks of
ownership of an asset and are treated as if the asset had been purchased outright and are capitalised and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or the useful economic lives of the equivalently owned assets.
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1

1.10

1.1

1.12

Accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments
The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis are as follows.

Financial asseis
Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised
cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.
Amounts due from the Academy Trust's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Einancial liabilities
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed to be & financial iiability, as the cash seftlement has already taken place and
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Amounts due to the Academy Trust's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the
Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, fo the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to
charitable purposes.

Pensions benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
('TPS) and the i.ocal Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the
assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated fo spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantiaily level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets fo assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions are recognised in the
period to which they relate.
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1.13

114

Accounting policies (Continued)

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the asseis are held separately from those of the Academy
Trust in separate trustee administiered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate
equivalent fo the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the
liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least friennially and are updated at each balance sheet
date. The amounts charged fo net income or expenditure are the current service costs and the costs of
scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs
as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of
financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the
scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair vaiue of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by
the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme
assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.
Acluarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Governors.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/
donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Depariment for Education.

Agency Arrangements

The Academy Trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments received from
ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of financial activities as
the Trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The Trust can use up io 5% of
the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of financial
activities.

The funds received and paid, and any balances held are disclosed in note 27.
Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumpfions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resulis. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost {(income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 20, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019
has been used by the actuary in vaiuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2024, Any differences between
the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability.
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Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement {Continued)

Critical areas of judgement

On conversion to an academy trust, the assets and liabilities of the Trust are measured at deemed cost. This
includes any buildings. The valuation of buildings involves a significant degree of estimation; refer to Note 13
for further detail to this estimation.

Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2024 2023

£ £ £ £

Capital grants - 25,954 25,954 77,249
Other donations - 33,577 33,577 65,076
- 59,531 59,531 142,325

Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

Unrestricted Resiricted Total Total
funds funds 2024 2023
£ £ E £
DfE/ESFA grants

General annual grant (GAG) - 6,807,850 6,807,850 6,676,801

Other DIE/ESFA grants:
- Pupil premium - 51,074 51,074 49,883
- Teachers pay and pension grant - 208,100 208,100 66,007
- Mainstream grant - 168,500 168,500 70,208
- Supplementary funding grant - - - 149,404
- Others - 7,163 7,163 14,417

- 7,242,687 7,242,687 7,026,720

Other government grants

Local authority grants - 67,697 67,697 22,967
Other granis (eg Wessex TTP) - 38,841 38,841 66,083
- 106,538 106,538 89,050

COVID-1% additional funding

DfE/ESFA

Other DIE/ESFA COVID-19 funding - 10,170 10,170 19,365
Other incoming resources 755,103 - 755,103 525,627
Total funding 755,103 7,359,395 8,114,498 7,660,762
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Other trading activities

Hire of facilities
Catering income

Investment income

Short term deposits

Expenditure

Expenditure on raising funds

- Direct costs

Academy's educational operations

- Direct costs

- Allocated support costs

Net income/{expenditure} for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets

Fees payable to auditor for:

- Audit
- Other services

- Internal audit fees paid to SLL Accounting Ltd
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2024 2023

£ £ £ £

22,739 - 22,739 7.725

209,337 - 209,337 113,028

232,076 - 232,076 120,753

Unrestricted Resfricted Total Total

funds funds 2024 2023

£ £ £ £

11,568 - 11,568 8,159

Non-pay expenditure Total Total

Staff costs Premises Other 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £

54,000 - 95,891 149,891 103,455
5,405,105 427,179 680,883 6,513,167 5,759,517
1,142,574 616,610 471,439 2,230,623 2,346,875
6,601,679 1,043,789 1,248,213 8,893,681 8,209,847
2024 2023

£ £

22923 20,505

427,131 353,518

438 4.489

13,440 13,500

6,785 7.625

1,704 2,824

41,000 43,000
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Charitable activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
Direct costs

Educational operations 307,561 6,205,606 6,513,167 5,759,517

Support costs
Educational operations 208,461 2,022,162 2,230,623 2,348,875
516,022 8,227,768 8,743,790 8,106,392
Analysis of costs 2024 2023
£ £

Direct costs

Teaching and educational support staff costs 5,418,752 4,904,162
Staff development 7,746 10,114
Depreciation and amoriisation 427179 358,007
Technology costs 43,066 16,810
Educational supplies and services 147,561 159,254
Examination fees 161,302 149,555
Other direct costs 307,561 161,615
6,513,167 5,759,517

Support costis
Support staff costs 1,171,494 1,210,932
Technology costs 12,145 10,970
Recruitment and support 5,524 3,954
Maintenance of premises and equipment 140,493 246,186
Cleaning 172,186 162,210
Energy costs 192,740 206,894
Rent, rates and other occupancy costs 66,248 53,413
Insurance 44243 35,483
Security and transport 19,323 23,667
Catering 168,945 154,366
Finance costs 41,000 43,000
Legal costs 29,711 45,466
Other support costs 141,104 130,208
Governance costs 24,767 20,126
2,230,623 2,346,875

-42.-



POOLE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

9 Staff

Staff costs and employee benefits
Staff costs during the year were:

2024 2023

£ £

Wages and salaries 4,934,831 4.534,531
Social security cosis 491,824 446,078
Pension costs 1,118,240 1,053,964
Staff costs - employees 6,544,895 6,034,573
Agency staff costs 56,784 89,155
6,601,679 6,123,728

Staff development and other staff costs 50,313 49,501
Total staff expenditure 6,651,992 6,173,229

Staff Severance Payments

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-coniractual severance payments totalling £Nil
(2023: £Nil).

Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

2024 2023

Number Number

Teachers 77 79
Administration and support 77 72
Management 6 6
160 157

Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer
national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:
2024 2023
Number Number

£60,001 - £70,000 2
£70,001 - £80,000 2
1

- N N

£100,001 - £110,000
£110,001 - £120,000
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1

Staff (Continued)

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Governors and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions
and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to
the Academy Trust was £695,596 (2023: £687,258).

Governors' remuneration and expenses

One or more of the Governors has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an
employment with the Academy Trust. The Headteacher and other staff Governors anly receive remuneration
in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of Headteacher and staff members under their
contracts of employment, and not in respect of their services as Govemnars.

The value of Govemors' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2024 2023
£ £
A J Smith (Head Teacher and Trustee)
Remuneration 110,000 - 115,000 100,000 - 105,000
Employer's pension contributions paid 25,000 - 30,000 20,000 - 25,000
S Fry (Staff Trustee) (resigned 10/11/23)
Remuneration 10,000 - 15,000 25,000 - 30,000
Employer’s pension contributions paid 0 - 5,000 5,000 - 10,000
S Powell (Staff Trustee) (resigned 15/09/22
Remuneration 0—-5,000
Employer’s pension contributions paid 0-5,000
K Stevens (Staff Trustee) (resigned 12/01/24)
Remuneration 15,000 - 20,000 35,000 - 40,000
Employer's pension contributions paid 0-5,000 5,000 - 10,000
F Gollan (Staff Trustee) (resigned 13/05/24)
Remuneration 10,000 - 15,000 45,000 - 50,000
Employer’s pension contributions paid 0 - 5,000 10,000 - 15,000
H Yeo (Staff Trustee) (appointed 10/01/24)
Remuneration 20,000 - 25,000 Nil
Employer’s pension contributions paid 0 - 5,000 Nil

During the period ended 31 August 2024, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £33 (2023: £49) were
reimbursed to 1 (2023: 1) Governors in relation to undertaking their roles of Principal and staff, and not with
respect to their services as Governors.

Rslated party transactions involving the trustees are set out in Note 25.
Governors' and officers’ insurance

The Academy Trust has opted into the Department for Education's Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on trust business,
and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible o quantify the Trustees and officers indemnity
element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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12 Intangible fixed assets {Academy and Group)

Computer
Software
£
Cost
Al 1 September 2023 and at 31 August 2024 35,685
Amoriisation
At 1 September 2023 35,637
Charge for year 48
At 31 August 2024 35,685
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2024 =
At 31 August 2023 48
13  Tangible fixed assets (Academy and Group)
Land and Coemputer Fixtures, Total
buildings equipment fittings &
equipment
£ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 September 2023 17,585,707 430,190 164,542 18,190,439
Additions 83,050 42,493 7,790 133,333
Disposals - (160,905) - (160,905)
At 31 August 2024 17,678,757 311,778 172,332 18,162,867
Depreciation
At 1 September 2023 3,158,417 310,202 118,901 3,587,520
On disposals - (160,905) - {160,905)
Charge for the year 362,229 57,377 7,525 427,131
At 31 August 2024 3,520,648 206,674 126,426 3,853,746
Net book value
At 31 August 2024 14,158,111 105,104 45,906 14,309,121
At 31 August 2023 14,437,290 119,988 45641 14,602,919

The land and buildings are included based upon the valuation exercise undertaken on behalf of the ESFA in
2012. They were valued on the depreciated replacement cost method as at the 31 August 2012. The land was

valued at £2,048,403 and the buildings at £11,299,658.

The academy has not obtained a separate valuation as the academies frust did not consider it an effective use
of public funds to obtain an additicnal valuation. The ESFA have conducted another deskiop valuation of the
land and buildings but the academy has chosen not to use this revaluation as there are some questions over

the values and assumptions made by ESFA.
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14

Investmenis

Subsidiary

The following is a summary of the financial statements of Poole Grammar School Enterprises Limited,

Academy
2024

£

1

2023

Group
2024

1

2023

company number 09178413, for year to 31 August 2024 which has been included in the consolidated financial
statements. Its object is "o carry out any trade or business for the purpose of raising funds for the Academy
Trust”, Itis 100% controlled by the Academy Trust.

Profit and loss account

Tumover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Interest received

Other operating income

Profit

Retained profit brought forward
at 1 September 2023

Charitable donation under gift
aid

Balance sheet

Called up share capital
Retained eamnings

Net assets/(liabilities)

2024 2023
£ £
209,337 113,029
(149,892) (103,455)
59,445 9,574

5 1

18,269

77,718 9,575
(3.338) (12,911)
74,383 (3,336)
2024 2023

£ £

1 1
74,383 (3,336)
74,384 (3,335)
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15 Debtors
Academy Group
2024 2023 2024 2023
£ E £ £
Trade debtors 29,785 38,305 9,061 19,829
VAT recoverable 25,617 186,356 25,784 187,000
Other debtors 2,900 1,900 2,900 1,900
Prepaymentis and accrued income 174,806 229,239 174,808 229,238
233,108 455,800 212,553 437,968
16  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Academy Group
2024 2023 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
ESFA CIF loans 18,112 18,112 -
Trade creditors 118,399 708,899 118,399 708,899
Other taxation and social security 111,499 102,852 111,499 102,852
Other creditors 125,581 96,157 125,581 96,157
Accruals and deferred income 311,469 455,503 311,469 455,503
685,060 1,363,411 685,060 1,363,411

After intensive and high level negotiations with the Conditiona! Improvements Fund (CIF) Team, they agreed
to a £181,181 CIF loan to add to the approved CIF project to replace our life expired gyms with a new Sports
Hall. This was confirmed in May 2022. This took the CIF project approval level up to the very maximum of
£4M. The Academy Trust has signed up to the 10 year CIF loan and first repayments are scheduled for

September 2024,
17  Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2024 2023
£ £
ESFA CIF loans 163,006 -
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17  Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year {Continued}
2024 2023

Analysis of loans £ £
Wholly repayable within five years 181,118 -
Less: included in current liabilities (18,112) -
Amounts included above 163,006 -

Loan maturity

Debt due in one year or less 18,112 -
Due in more than two years but not more than five years 72,447 -
Due in more than five years 90,559 -

181,118 -

18 Deferred income

2024 2023
£ £
Deferred income is included within:
Creditors due within one year 154,508 148,760
Deferred income at 1 September 2023 148,760 58,149
Released from previous years {148,760) (58,149)
Resources deferred in the year 154,508 148,760
Deferred income at 31 August 2024 154,508 148,760

The deferred income relates to income received in the period fo 31 August 2024 which relates to the year
ended 31 August 2025. The above deferred income relates to the following:

Trips £116,168
Rates grant £29780
Lockers £2.420
Other £6,140
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Funds
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2023 Income Expenditure transfers 2024
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 6,807,850 (7,224,721} 416,871 -
Pupil premium - 51,074 {561,074) - -
Qther DIE/ESFA COVID-19
funding - 10,170 (10,170) - -
Other DfE/ESFA grants - 383,763 (383,763) - -
Other government grants - 106,538 (106,538) - -
Bursary 14,871 9,918 (8,360) - 16,429
Amenities (Donations) 42 218 11,514 (16,818) - 36,914
Other restricted funds - 12,145 {12,145) - -
Pension reserve (920,000} - 13,000 96,000 (811,000)
(862,911) 7,392,972 (7,800,589) 512,871 (757,657)
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE group capital grants 14,602,967 25,954 (427,179) 107,378 14,309,121
Total resiricted funds 13,740,056 7,418,926 (8,227,768) 620,250 13,651,464
Unrestricted funds
General funds 296,571 098,747 (665,913) (524,250) 105,155
Total funds 14,036,627 8,417,673 {8,823,681) 96,000 13,656,619

The academy restricted funds are the same as the consolidated funds. The academy unrestricted funds are
£30,772 (2023: £2989,907).

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted General Funds are those which are supplied for a specific duty and the funds spent only in
accordance with the agreement or restriction placed upon each.

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds are those assets which have been capitaiised as a resuli of a donation from the
original school on conversion to an academy or assets purchased from one of the other funds since gaining
academy status and transferred.

Unrestricted Funds are all other sources of income generated by the academy through trading or fundraising
and to which no restrictions apply regarding the way they are spent.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2024,
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20

Funds

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Pupil premium

Other DIE/ESFA COVID-19
funding

Other DfE/ESFA grants
Other government grants
Bursary

Amenities {Donations)
Sports Hall (Donations)
Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE group capital grants

Total restricted funds
Unresiricted funds

General funds

Total funds

Analysis of net assets between funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 are

represented by:
Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Pension scheme liability

Total net assets

{Continued)

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure transfers 2023

£ £ £ £ £

454,986 6,676,801 (6,763,873) {367,914) -

- 49,883 (49,883) - -

- 19,365 {19,365} - -

- 300,036 {300,036) - -

- 89,050 (89,050) - -

11,784 11,560 (8,473) - 14,871
41,139 21,972 (20,893) - 42,218
13,444 - - (13,444} -

- 31,544 {31,544) - -
(1,134,000) - {89,000) 303,000 {920,000}
(612,647) 7,200,211 (7,372,117) (75,358) (862,911)
14,073,783 77,249 {358,007} 809,942 14,602,967
13,461,136 7,277,460 (7,730,124) 731,584 13,740,056

550,339 654,539 (479,723) (428,584) 296,571
14,011,475 7,931,999 {8,200,847) 303,000 14,036,627
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total

Funds General Fixed asset Funds

E £ £ £

- - 14,309,121 14,309,121

105,155 901,409 - 1,006,564
- (685,060) - (685,060)
- {163,006) - {163,006)
- {811,000) - {811,000)

105,155 (757,657) 14,309,121 13,656,619
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21

Analysis of net assets between funds {Continued)
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total

Funds General Fixed asset Funds

£ £ £ £

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are
represented by:

intangible fixed assets - - 48 48
Tangible fixed assets - - 14,602,919 14,602,919
Current assets 296,571 1,420,500 - 1,717,071
Current fiabilities - (1,363,411) - (1,363,411)
Pension scheme liability - (920,000) - (920,000)
Total net assets 296,571 (862,911) 14,602,967 14,036,627

Pension and similar obligations

The Academy Trust's employees belong fo two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff;, and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching siaff, which is managed by Dorset County Council. Both are multi-employer defined
benefit schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest
actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020, and that of the LGPS related to the
period ended 31 March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £113,082 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2024 (2023: £87,218) and
are included within creditors.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS}) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academy trusts. All
teachers have the option to opt out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions {(Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recognised and managed
appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions.
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Pension and similar obligations (Continued)

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits
and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the SCAPE rate,
set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPI. The key elements of
the valuation are:

» Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy).
This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no change
in member benefits is needed.

« Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £39,800 million.

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024.The next valuation result is due to be
implemented from 1 April 2028.

The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £885,565 (2023: £759,748).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan. Accordingly,
the Academy Trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has has accounted for its
confributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above
the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the pericd ended 31 August 2024 was £344,759 (2023: £314,757), of
which employer's contributions totalled £274,310 (2023: £248,216) and employees' contributions totalled
£70,449 (2023: £66,541). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 23.6% for employers and
5.5-12.0% for employees, and which rate is dependent on salary level. The estimated value of employer
contributions for the forthcoming year is £276,000.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event
of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published
on GOV.UK.

Total contributions made 2024 2023

£ £
Employer's contributions 282,000 251,000
Employees' confributions 72,000 68,000
Total contributions 354,000 319,000
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Pension and similar obligations

Principal actuarial assumptions 2024

%
Rate of increase in salaries 3.85
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/infiation 2.85
Discount rate for scheme fiabilities 5.05
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.85

{Continued)

2023
%

3.9
29
5.3
2.9

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2024 2023
Years Years
Retiring today
- Males 218 218
- Females 239 239
Retiring in 20 years
- Males 231 231
- Females 253 253
Sensitivity analysis
Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:
2024 2023
£'000 £'000
Discount rate + 0.1% (234) (204)
Discount rate - 0.1% 2438 217
Mortality assumption + 1 year 249 217
Mortality assumption - 1 year (233) (204)
Pension increases and deferred revaluation + 0.1% 248 216
Pension increases and deferred revaluation - 0.1% (233) (204}
Long term salary increase + 0.1% 241 210
Long term satary increase - 0.1% (241) (210)
The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme 2024 2023
Fair value Fair value
£ £
Equities 2,739,000 2,332,000
Other bonds 284,000 248,000
Diversified Growth Fund 284,000 257,000
Property 334,000 331,000
Other assets 697,000 609,000
Total market value of assets 4,338,000 3,777,000

The actual return on scheme assets was £461,000 (2023: £338,000).
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21 Pension and similar obligations

Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost
Interest income
Interest cost

Total amount recognised

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

At 1 September 2023
Current service cost
Interest cost

Employee contributions
Acluarial loss/(gain)
Benefits paid

At 31 August 2024

Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets

At 1 September 2023
Interest income
Actuarial (gain)/ioss
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits paid

At 31 August 2024

(Continued)

2024 2023
£ £

(54,000) 46,000
(203,000) (154,000)
244,000 197,000

(13,000) 89,000

2024
£

4,697,000
228,000
244,000

72,000
162,000
(254,000)

5,149,000

2024
£

3,777,000
203,000
258,000
282,000

72,000
(254,000)

4,338,000
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23

24

Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

Net expenditure for the reporting period (as per the statement of
financial activities)

Adjusted for;

Capital grants from DIE and other capital income
Investment income receivable

Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Amortisation of intangible fixed asseis

Decrease in debtors

(Decrease)fincrease in creditors

Net cash {(used in)/provided by operating activities

Analysis of changes in net funds

Cash

Loans falling due within one year
Loans falling due after more than one year

L.ong-term commitments

Operating leases

2024 2023
Notes £ £
(476,008) (277.848)
{25,954) (77,249)
6 (11,568) (8,159)
21 {54,000) 46,000
21 41,000 43,000
427,131 353,519
12 48 4,489
225,415 2,646,972
(696,463) 603,524
(570,399) 3,334,248
1 September Cash flows 31 August
2023 2024
£ £ £
1,279,103 (485,002) 794,011
- {18,112) {18,112)
- (163,008) (163,008)
1,279,103 (666,210) 612,893

At 31 August 2024 the iotal of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases was:

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due in two and five years

2024 2023
£ £
7,072 22,923
- 7,072
7,072 29,995
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Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Governors being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
Governors have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2023, including notifying ESFA of all transactions
made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and in accordance with the
Academy Trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related
party transactions. The following relaied party transactions tock place in the financial period.

The Academy Trust is the parent company of the Poole Grammar School Enterprises Limited trading
subsidiary which commenced trading 1 September 2014. The results for the year ended 31 August 2024 have
been consolidated into these accounts.

The Academy Trust is a member of the South West Academy Trust (SWAT) with N Bichard on the board of
SWAT. Poole Grammar School took over the administration of the SWAT funds in April 2018 under an agency
arrangement. See Note 27 for further details.

The Academy Trust is a beneficiary of the School Trust Fund {registered charity 306310). The Academy Trust
provides support and administration as required. A J Smith was a trustee of both entities during the year. The
objects of the charity are ‘The promotion of Charitable Educational Trusts for the benefit of Poole Grammar
School in the County of Dorset’. During the year to 31 August 2024 the Parent Staff Association donated
£22 227 (2023: £3,498) for the school magazine for Poole Grammar School and equipment.

At 31 August 2024, the Trust Fund had £115,415 (2023: £97,485) in investments, £41,384 (2023; £45,834) in
current assets, £nil (2023: £nil) in liabilities and £156,799 (2023: £143,319) in funds. The charity had income
of £31,086 (2023: £24,534), expenditure of £26,364 (2023: £11,840), gains of £8,757 (2023: losses £12,773)
and an overall increase in funds of £13,480 (2023 decrease £179). Please see page 5 of the Governors
report for further details.

R Bichard, spouse of N Bichard, a trustee, is employed by the academy trust as a teacher. R Bichard’s
appointment was made in open competition and N Bichard was not involved in the decision making process
regarding the appointment. R Bichard is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no special
treatment as a result of her relationship to a trustee.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of
it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she
ceases to be a member.
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Agency arrangements

Bursary - The Academy Trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In the
accounting period ending 31 August 2024 the irust received £9,918 (2023: £11,560) and disbursed £5,273
from the fund (2023: £8,473). During the year, £3,087 (2023: £2,281) was paid to the ESFA as undistiibuted
funds from previous years.

An amount of £16,428 (2023: £14,871} is included in reserves relating to undistributed funds that can be
carried forward into 2024/25. An amount of £7,733 (2023 £3,087), is included in other creditors relating to
undistributed funds that is repayable to ESFA.

SWAT - At 31 August 2024, the trusi held a balance of £Nil (2023: £Nil) as an agent for the South West
Academic Trust.

During the accounting period ending 31 August 2024, the Trust received £Nil (2023: £55) and made payments
of £Nil (2023: £9,862) as an agent for the South West Academic Trust.
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